
Resources Directorate
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
AssistantAssistant  DirectorDirector  (Legal,(Legal,  GovernanceGovernance  &&  
Workforce)Workforce)

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk

To:  All Members of the Pennines Township 
Delegated and Funding Sub Committee.

Enquiries to: Shahada Shahid
Email:               shahada.shahid@rochdale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01706 924716
Date: 8th November 2016 

Dear Councillor

Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee.

You are requested to attend the meeting of the Pennines Township Delegated 
and Funding Sub Committee to be held in Hollingworth B, Training and 
Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, 
OL16 1XU on Thursday, 17th November 2016 commencing at 6.15 pm.

The agenda and supporting papers are attached. 

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of 
Interest which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the 
Code of Conduct or contact the Monitoring Officer or staff in the Governance and 
Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)

Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee Membership 
2016/17
Councillor John Blundell
Councillor Allen Brett
Councillor Neil Butterworth
Councillor Robert Clegg
Councillor Irene Davidson
Councillor Ashley Dearnley
Councillor Janet  Emsley
Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Aftab Hussain
Councillor Andy Kelly
Councillor Amna Mir
Councillor Rina Paolucci-Escobar
Councillor Ann Stott JP

Public Document Pack

mailto:shahada.shahid@rochdale.gov.uk


Rochdale Borough Council

PENNINES TOWNSHIP DELEGATED AND FUNDING SUB-COMMITTEE

Thursday, 17th November 2016 at 6.15 pm

Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, 
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

A G E N D A

Apologies for Absence
1.  Declarations of Interest 1 - 3

Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.  

Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct.

2.  Minutes 4 - 6

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Pennines Township 
Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee held on 4th July 2016. 

3.  Pennines Township Funds 2016/17 7 - 44

4.  Community Centre Monitoring 45 - 47



P
age 1

A
genda Item

 1



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING

P
age 2



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests.

Disclosable pecuniary interests
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners.

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.  

Contracts Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council - 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
(a) the landlord is the Council: and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where -
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and
(b) either –
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class.

Personal Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect - 
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority;
(b)  any body -

(i) exercising functions of a public nature;
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union), 
of which you are in a position of general control or management;
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25.

Prejudicial Interests
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business -
(a) Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or
 (b) Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above.

MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25TH JULY 2012.

Page 3



PENNINES TOWNSHIP DELEGATED AND FUNDING SUB COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Monday, 4th July 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor John Blundell (Chair); Councillors Butterworth, Clegg, 
Davidson, Emsley, Hartley, Kelly, Paolucci and Stott

OFFICERS:  P O’Gorman and T Knight (Neighbourhoods Directorate) and S Shahid 
(Resources Directorate). 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: approximately 5 members of the public.   

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillors Dearnley, Hussain and Mir

ADDITIONAL ITEMS
1 In accordance with Council procedure rules the Chair indicated an additional 
item of business would be considered at this meeting, namely application PTC/05/16 
– Moorhouse Methodist - cellar restoration project.  The grounds of urgency, being 
that the funding requirements need to be met prior to the next meeting of the Sub-
Committee.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
2 There were no declarations of interest. 

MINUTES
3 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Pennines Delegated 
Sub-Committee held 29th March 2016, be approved as a correct record.

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2016/17
4 The Director of Neighbourhoods submitted a report requesting that the Sub-
Committee consider applications for funding that had been submitted by groups and 
for projects.

The recommendations contained within the report were presented as management of 
the Pennines Township Fund is a function that is delegated to the Pennines 
Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee. Pennines Township Funds are 
allocated to projects/schemes that benefit the Township’s community and 
environment, and realise the Township priorities. The report also enabled the Sub-
Committee to monitor and review the use of the Pennines Township Funds to ensure 
continued efficient and effective use of Township Funds.

Alternatives considered: the sub-Committee were asked to support or decline 
proposed schemes within the submitted report.

The Sub-Committee received representations from applicants who addressed the 
Sub-Committee in relation to their applications.

DECIDED – That (1) the expenditure, commitments and balances of Pennines 
Township Revenue and Capital funds as detailed in Appendices 1 and 2 of the 
submitted report be noted;

(2) The decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in
Appendix 3 of the submitted report be noted;

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



(3) The Sub-Committee notes that the Principal Townships Officer has 
assessed proposed projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of 
the Pennines Township Fund, priorities of the Township and that any specific 
risks have been identified;

(4) The Principal Townships Officer, in consultation with the Chair and 
Vice Chair of this Sub-Committee, be given delegated authority to make 
appropriate decisions on any deferred projects;

 (5) Applications for assistance from the Pennines Township Revenue 
and Capital Funds, as detailed in Appendix 4 of the submitted report, be 
determined as follows: (see table below).

(6) The Sub-Committee notes the suggestions for the Town Centre Fund 
and Shop Frontage Scheme and the future remit of the funds as detailed in 
Appendix 5 of the submitted report; and approves that suggestion 2  be 
pursued subject to the addition of allowing Environmental Improvement 
Grants;  the relevant application forms and terms and conditions be amended 
in consultation with the Township Chair and Vice Chair.

REFERENCE PROJECT/SCHEME DECISION
PTC/04/16 Bentgates Estate 20mph 

speed limit scheme. 
Approve an allocation of 
£5,500 from Capital Fund 
for the Bentgates Estate 
20mph speed limit. 

PF/17/15 Newhey Car Park. The application for the 
Newhey Car Park be 
deferred. Councillor 
Kelly was advised to 
seek support 
corporately from the 
Cabinet Member for 
Highways. 

PF/25/15 Helping our local  
wildlife – eco activities 
for young people 
project. 

Approve an allocation of 
£1,700 from the Projects 
Fund for the Helping our 
local wildlife – eco 
activities for young 
people project. 

PF/01/16 New Road traffic island 
investigation scheme. 

Defer the application for 
the New Road traffic 
island scheme pending 
further information and 
that the final decision be 
delegated to Chair and 
Vice Chair of the 
Committee to determine. 

PF/03/16 Assertive Outreach 
Project. 

Approve an allocation of 
£2,250 from the Project 
Fund for the Assertive 
Outreach Project.

PTC/05/16 Moorhouse Methodist 
Church – Cellar 
restoration project. 

Approve an allocation of 
£5,000 from the Capital 
Fund for the Moorhouse 
Methodist Church – 
cellar restoration 
project. 

Page 5



PTC/09/15 Birch View and Birch 
Road waiting 
restrictions scheme. 

The application for the 
Birch View and Birch 
Road waiting 
restrictions scheme be 
deferred. 

PTC/01/16 Brown Lodge Street and 
Brown Lodge Drive 
parking restrictions 
scheme. 

Approve an allocation of 
£4,000 from the Capital 
Fund for the Brown 
Lodge Street and Brown 
Lodge Drive parking 
restriction scheme. 

PTC/02/16 Firgrove Pavilion shower 
area refurbishment 
project. 

Defer the application for 
the Firgrove Pavilion 
shower area 
refurbishment project.  
Members requested the 
application be 
considered at the next 
Pennines Township 
Committee along with a 
report from Officers 
detailing the reason why 
additional funding is 
required.  

PTC/03/16 Stevenson Square, 
CCTV system.

Approve an allocation of 
£12,000 – option 3 from 
the Capital Fund for the 
Stevenson Square CCTV 
system. 

Eligible for call in: yes

Page 6



Title: Pennines Township Funds 2016/17 Public/Private: For Publication

Report to: Pennines Township Delegated and 
Funding Sub Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods and Community

Report Author:  Sharron Worrall

Date: Thursday 17 November 2016

Director: Director of Neighbourhoods

Tel: Tel: 01706 924802  

Author Email:    sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk Key Decision: No

Comments from Statutory Officers: Monitoring Officer:  Yes
Section 151 Officer: Yes 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 Members to be updated on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments and 
balances of Pennines Township Funds 2016/17 and enable the allocation of funds to 
proposed projects.

2. Recommendation

2.1 Committee note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Pennines Township 
revenue and capital funds in Appendix 1 and 2.

2.2 Members note decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in Appendix 3.

2.3 Committee notes the Principal Townships Officer has assessed proposed projects to 
be considered for funding against the criteria of the Pennines Township Fund, 
priorities of the Township and any specific risks have been identified (information 
detailed in Appendix 4).

2.4 Members consider and approve, defer or refuse the allocation of revenue and capital 
funds to proposed projects listed in Appendix 4.

2.5 The Principal Townships Officer, in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair, be 
given delegated authority to make decisions on any deferred projects.

2.6 Members note the summaries of evaluation information for projects funded as detailed 
in Appendix 5.

3. Reason for recommendation

3.1 Management of the Pennines Township Fund is delegated to the Pennines Township 
Delegated and Funding Sub Committee.

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



3.2 Pennines Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the Township’s 
community and environment, and realise the Township’s priorities.

3.3 To enable Committee to monitor and review the use of the Pennines Township’s 
Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the Township’s Funds.

4. Background

4.1 Members are asked to note expenditure, commitments and balances of Pennines 
Township’s Funds 2016/17 in Appendix 1 and 2.  Actual/committed spend for revenue 
funds is 58.94% and capital funds is 45.80%.

4.2 Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Committee to ensure 
Members are aware of the projects that have been agreed within their Ward.  
Members are asked to note the decisions made under delegated arrangements since 
the last Committee in Appendix 3.

4.3 Projects have been identified for funding from Pennines Township’s Funds 2016/17.  
Members are asked to decide whether to approve, reject or defer the allocation of 
revenue and capital funds to these proposed projects listed in Appendix 4.

4.4 To reduce the potential carry forward of funds during 2016/17, Members are asked to 
agree to the Principal Townships Officer, in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair, 
being given delegated authority to make decisions on any deferred projects.

4.5 Evaluation of projects provides useful information to the Township relating to 
identifying the effectiveness of the application process and management of grants; 
whether projects deliver value for money; applicants achieve their objectives and 
evidence their successes, and ensure that the completed projects funded complied 
with the terms and conditions of the Pennines Township Fund.  Grants awarded and 
projects funded have made a difference to the local community with improvements to 
local facilities, increased social interaction and delivery of solutions to address local 
needs.  All successful applicants are informed that it is a condition of the grant that 
they complete a project evaluation form.  Members are asked to note the summaries of 
evaluation information received on projects which have been funded as detailed in 
Appendix 5.

5. Alternatives considered

5.1 In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the allocation 
of funds to projects as appropriate.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use of the 
Pennines Township’s Funds to ensure best use of available resources.

6.2 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring reports will 
be presented to future Committees.

6.3 Monitoring information will be provided to Public Health concerning its contribution of 
funds to Pennines Township.  Projects that support improved physical, mental health 
and wellbeing of people in our local communities will be identified and reported to the 
Council’s Public Health Team.

7. Legal Implications

Page 8



7.1 Under the Borough of Rochdale Compact with the voluntary sector the Council has 
made a commitment to consider the impact on service users of any changes to the 
funding arrangements for the voluntary sector and to provide them with  at least three 
months’ notice of any  changes and liaise with them and any relevant stakeholders to 
mitigate the impact of reduced funding. Therefore, if members are inclined not to 
continue funding the provision of a service provided by the voluntary sector, Members 
should be mindful of their obligations under the Compact.  

8. Personnel Implications

8.1 There are no other implications arising from this report.

9. Corporate Priorities

9.1 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to meet their 
respective Township priorities and deliver actions to meet those priorities.  This report 
asks Members to consider how Township Funds 2016/17 are allocated in order to do 
this.

9.2 The Vision and Blueprint for Rochdale Council retains Township Committees and will 
devolve a range of services to Township direction, managed through annual Township 
Plans which are reviewed on a quarterly basis.

10. Risk Assessment Implications

10.1 Specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report will be identified 
for the proposed projects in Appendix 4.

11. Equalities Impacts

11.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

11.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

Careful consideration has been given to the potential equality impact of the proposed 
projects.  No adverse impacts are expected and it is anticipated that the projects will 
benefit all sections of the community.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 9



APPENDIX 1

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE 2016/17           £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f (2015/16) 93,733       39.74% 58.94%

Base Budget 2016/17 81,500       

Income from other funds/services 2016/17 -                

Budget Available 2016/17 175,233     

Budgets transferred to services/actuals 69,645       

Commitments 33,640       

Total Actual + Commitments 103,285     

Budget Remaining 2016/17 71,948       

Forecast Outturn 175,233     

Potential under/overspend 2016/17 -                

Funds

 Balance 

b/f 2015/16

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2016/17

£ 

 Income/

Adjustments 

 Revised 

Budget 

2016/17 

 Actuals to 

Period        

 £ 

 Committed 

to Period     

£ 

 Virements 

within 

Township 

Funds 

£ 

 Virements 

to Services 

£ 

 Total to 

Period      

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2016/17       

£ 

Projects Fund 62,718       64,500       -                     127,218     28,773           26,691         -                  30,588         86,051     41,167      

Events Fund 4,525         5,000         -                     9,525         5,296             1,460           -                  -                  6,756      2,770        

Pennines Town Centres Fund 21,750       -                -                     21,750       -                    500              -                  -                  500         21,250      

Littleborough Lakeside Ward Fund 400            3,000         -                     3,400         -                    400              -                  -                  400         3,000        

Milnrow & Newhey Ward Fund 3,769         3,000         -                     6,769         -                    3,769           -                  -                  3,769      3,000        

Smallbridge & Firgrove Ward Fund 220            3,000         -                     3,220         -                    820              -                  1,638           2,458      762           

Wardle & West Littleborough Ward Fund 351            3,000         -                     3,351         385                -                  -                  2,966           3,351      0               

Total 93,733       81,500       -                     175,233     34,453           33,640         -                  35,192         103,285   71,948      

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2016/17

P
age 10



APPENDIX 2

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2016/17

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL 2016/17           £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f (2015/16)            67,535 23.08% 45.80%

Base Budget 2016/17            77,600 

Income/Adjustments 2016/17                      - 

Budget Available 2016/17          145,135 

Budgets transferred to other services/actuals            33,500 

Commitments            32,965 

Total Actual + Commitments            66,465 

Budget Remaining 2016/17            78,670 

Forecast Outturn          145,135 

Potential under/(over)spend 2016/17                      - 

Funds

 Balance b/f 

2015/16

£ 

 Budget 

2016/17

£ 

 Income/

Adjustments 

 Revised 

Budget 

2016/17 

 Actuals to 

Period        

 £ 

 Committed 

to Period     

£ 

 Virements 

within 

Township 

Funds 

£ 

 Virements 

to Services 

£ 

 Total to 

Period      

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2016/17       

£ 

Capital Fund          60,685          69,600                      -      130,285              8,500          25,406                    -          25,000      58,906        71,379 

Armed Forces Fund            6,400                    -                      -          6,400                      -            6,288                    -                    -        6,288             112 

Littleborough Lakeside Ward Capital Fund -                  2,000           -                     2,000         -                     750              -                  -                  750         1,250        

Milnrow & Newhey Ward Capital Fund -                  2,000           -                     2,000         -                     -                  -                  -                  -              2,000        

Smallbridge & Firgrove Ward Capital Fund -                  2,000           -                     2,000         -                     -                  -                  -                  -              2,000        

Wardle & West Littleborough Ward Capital Fund 450              2,000           -                     2,450         -                     521              -                  -                  521         1,929        

Total          67,535          77,600                      -      145,135              8,500          32,965                    -          25,000      66,465        78,670 

P
age 11



PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS - DELEGATED DECISIONS FOR INFORMATION

Members note the delegated decisions made by the Principal Townships Officer in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of Pennines Township Committee

Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount
Delegated Decision 

Date
Decision

PF/12/16 Edmund Street Car 

Park Height 

Restrictive Barrier

Supply and installation of a steel height restrictive barrier to the 

entrance of the public car park on Edmund Street, Milnrow

Milnrow & 

Newhey

£1,458.07 05 October 2016 Awarded £1,458.07 

from Projects Fund

PF/11/16 Read and Feed 2017 Read and Feed 2017 to be delivered by Library Services during the 

summer holidays at Smallbridge Library.  This project aims to provide 

a meal to children during the summer holidays who may not eat 

when not at school (eg children in receipt of Free School Meals), 

increase the number of 5-11 year olds accessing local library 

services and improve take-up of the Summer Reading Challenge.  A 

successful pilot project was delivered during summer 2016.

Smallbridge & 

Firgrove

£1,500.00 14 October 2016 Awarded £1,500 

from Projects Fund

PF/13/16 Wardle Events & 

Activities

Wardle Society propose to deliver a number of events and activities 

that will provide social and environmental benefits to the Wardle 

area.  A programme of community activities will aim to bring 

neighbours together and strengthen community spirit.  Members of 

Wardle Society will meet with Ward Councillors to agree, develop 

and promote a calendar of activities that mark seasonal traditional 

events and occasions of local significance.  Improvements to the 

local environment is a priority within Wardle and Members of Wardle 

Society will work with Wardle Volunteers to identify areas that would 

benefit from litter picks, overgrown vegetation removal, new planting 

and upgrading of street furniture.

Wardle & 

West 

Littleborough

£1,000.00 25 October 2016 Awarded £1,000 

from the Projects 

Fund

APPENDIX 3

Page 1 of 1

P
age 12



APPENDIX 4

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2016/17

Town Centres Fund 2016/17 available for allocation = £21,250

Pennines Township Projects Fund 2016/17 - Proposed project for decision

Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met

Request 

Originator
Cost

Littleborough 

Lakeside

Yes

Place

People

Prosperity

Littleborough 

Food & Drink Sub 

Committee

£2,214.64

Projects Fund 2016/17 available for allocation = £41,167

Pennines Township Projects Fund 2016/17 - Proposed project for decision

Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met

Request 

Originator
Cost

Pennines 

Township

Yes

Place

Pennines in 

Bloom

£3,497.15

Risk implication None

Ref No Name of Project

PF/15/16 Pennines Projects

Project 

Description

Planting schemes and installation of benches/picnic tables to enhance the environment at locations across Pennines Township. Horticultural initiatives proposed include 

introducing fruit bearing trees and bushes along a popular route of the canal for harvesting by the local community as well as benefiting wildlife; plant trees and roses on 

Hollingworth Road to enhance the access to the canal; summer bedding plants to provide attractive floral displays in Milnrow, Littleborough, Smithy Bridge and Wardle 

(Application form providing information about the project and breakdown of proposed expenditure at Appendix 4B)

Risk implication The applicant needs to supply written permission from the land owner(s) before work can commence.

Ref No Name of Project

PTCF/03/16 Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 2017

Project 

Description

Littleborough Food & Drink Festival will be a family friendly event on Saturday 10 June 2017 (11am to 4pm) that will celebrate 'Great British' food and drink with a mix of 

outdoor stalls and indoor shop premises.  Littleborough Square will be an area for musical entertainment, 'street party' seating and food and drink stalls plus traditional 

interactive fete 'game' style stalls such as Coconut Shy, Hook a Duck, etc.  Local chef cooking demonstrations, a food produce market place and face painters for children 

will take place on Hare Hill Road.  The popular 'trail' will return this year providing visitors the opportunity to visit each participating shop, cafe, restaurant or business to 

sample food and encourage repeat business and promote Littleborough as a desirable shopping and tourist destination. (Application form providing information about the 

event and breakdown of proposed expenditure at Appendix 4A)

Page 1 of 2

P
age 13



Capital Fund 2016/17 available for allocation = £71,379

Pennines Township Capital Fund 2016/17 - Proposed project for decision

Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met

Request 

Originator
Cost

Smallbridge & 

Firgrove

Yes

Place

Resident £3,500

Milnrow & 

Newhey

Yes

Place

Resident £4,000

Comments

Wardle & West 

Littleborough

Yes

Place

Resident £4,000

Comments

Risk implication Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development resulting in 

additional costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further 

information, justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal 

process.  To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments 

made to the scheme at committee resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising.

PTC/11/16 Kings Grove Parking Restrictions

Project 

Description

Introduction of parking restrictions to control indiscriminate parking at the entrance to Kings Grove, Wardle which is preventing access by Emergency Services.

Highways fully support any restrictions on the highway that improve the safe and efficient movement of traffic.  The parking is currently entirely residential and the 

advertising of such a restriction may result in objections being received.

Highways fully support any restrictions on the highway that improve the safe and efficient movement of traffic.  Scheme considered at Pennines Township Delegated & 

Funding Sub Committee on 5 October 2016 and deferred.

Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development resulting in 

additional costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further 

information, justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal 

process.  To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments 

made to the scheme at committee resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising.

Name of ProjectRef No

Risk implication

PTC/09/15 Birch View and Birch Road Waiting Restrictions

Project 

Description

Introduction of waiting restrictions on Birch View and Birch Road, Wardle to prevent indiscriminate parking of vehicles causing obstructions and address safety concerns 

for motorists wishing to pass along the public highway.

Comments Highways recommend the introduction of waiting restrictions to ensure visibility and prevent obstruction at the junction of Birch View and Birch Road and improve 

safety/movement of traffic.  Also waiting restrictions would prevent the obstruction of residents' driveways.  Scheme considered at previous Pennines Township 

Delegated & Funding Sub Committees and decision deferred until the building work at the former Ambulance Station has been completed.

Risk implication Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development resulting in 

additional costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further 

information, justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee more than five objections received during the 

legal process.  Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme requiring readvertising.

PTC/07/16 Whitebeam Close Waiting Restrictions

Project 

Description

Introduction of parking restrictions to prevent indiscriminate parking in the turning head to Whitebeam Close, Newhey.

Page 2 of 2

P
age 14



Form PT02 

PPEENNNNIINNEESS  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDDSS  22001166//1177  

AAPPPPLLIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM  REF 
 

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants.  If you need advice or support to 
complete your application form, please contact Pennines Township Office.  

SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT 

Name of project Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 2017 

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS 

a) Name of organisation
Littleborough Food & Drink Sub Committee 

b) Type of organisation

Voluntary/ 
community

Registered 
charity

Sports/ 
leisure club

Limited 
company 

Private 
company 

Social 
enterprise 

Other 
type 

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides

The Littleborough Food Festival Sub Committee was formed after a trial event held in June 2015. 

The Food Festival was so popular that a larger scale event was organised the following year on Saturday 11th June 
2016 and following the growth and success again the Sub Committee are now seeking to establish Littleborough Food 
& Drink Festival as an annual regional event with a third date planned for Saturday 10th June 2017. 

The Food Festival Committee is made up of group of local business representatives that have joined together from 
the Pennines Business & Tourism Forum to voluntarily plan and organise this exciting event. They are also well 
supported by Littleborough Events and Associations Forum in terms of organisation and event volunteers. 

The aim of Littleborough Food Festival is to support and promote business in Littleborough by encouraging local 
shops, cafes, restaurants and pubs to participate in a community event together to attract visitors into Littleborough. 

We aim to celebrate the quality chefs, restaurants and local food and drink producers that exist in Littleborough and 
surrounding nearby areas, providing them with an opportunity to showcase their products to a wider audience. 

d) Contact name
Joanne Matthews (Chair) Simon France (Secretary) Julie Pimlott (Treasurer) 
Neela Jackson, Clare Aspinall & Mark Jones 

e) Contact telephone

f) Contact address and
postcode

g) Email address

h) Web address www.littleboroughfoodfestival.co.uk 

Page 15

mailto:hello@littleboroughfoodfestival.co.uk
worrall sharron
Typewritten Text
PTCF/03/16

worrall sharron_1
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4A



 

Form PT02 

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES 

a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?  Yes  No 

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below 

Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 2016 

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come 
from Rochdale Council? 

 
 Yes  No 

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your 
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments) 

 

 

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION 

Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants, 
organisation, group or wider community? 

 
Littleborough Food Festival aims to help put Littleborough on the map as a desirable tourist and shopping 
destination by attracting people to attend an appealing family friendly event. In turn, as a result of how the event 
is organised with the popular ‘food trail’ these visitors will be encouraged to explore the fantastic array of shops, 
cafes, restaurants and pubs in the town. 
 
The Festival will take place on Saturday 10th June 2017, 11am until 4pm. The venue is a mix of outdoor stalls and 
indoor shop premises. We will celebrate ‘Great British’ food & drink, creating the atmosphere of a vintage British 
Street Party with seating areas, street decorations such as bunting flags and balloons and quality musical 
entertainment throughout the day. 
 
Littleborough Square will form a perfect ‘food hub’ where there will be an area for musical entertainment, the 
‘street party’ seating area, and food and drink stalls. There will also be a small number of traditional interactive 
fete ‘game’ style stalls such as a Coconut Shy, Hook a Duck etc. 
 
Hare Hill Road will be home to the local chef’s cooking demonstrations, seating for the public watching the 
demonstrations, a food produce marketplace and face painters for children. 
 
All of this will be combined with a ‘trail’ where visitors are provided with a map and invited to visit each 
participating shop, café, restaurant or business to sample food tasters provided by the business  / a food trader 
situated within the business premises for the event. 
 
The trial event attracted unprecedented large numbers of people to not only the Square but also the individual 
businesses taking part nearby. The event this year built upon that and despite inclement weather the 
atmosphere was still buzzing, the stalls and individual shops saw an increase in visitors and the feedback from 
the public wholly positive. 
 
A number of shops report the event itself results in an immediate increase in footfall and trade on the day, in 
particular the ones who put in the extra effort to get involved and provide an attractive food or shopping offer. 
Feedback from shop owners tells us it also brings repeat business to local shops after the event, for example 
customers discovering shops they didn’t know about  – the ‘food festival’ effect. 
 
The event attracts a great deal of publicity in the local press in the months leading up to it and also afterwards. All this 
helps to bring people into Littleborough and promotes the area as a desirable place to visit and in turn the local 
restaurants and shops benefit hugely. 
 
The festival aims to bring together local businesses and the community. It is anticipated that by organising the event 
again next year we will build upon the positivity and good reputation we have established so far and continue to 
highlight Littleborough as a successful shopping and tourist destination within the Rochdale Borough, not only for 
local people but for visitors across the North West and beyond. 

Page 16



 

Form PT02 

 

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES 

a) Cost of project £ 4534.64 

b) Amount of grant required £ 2214.64 

c) Amount from other sources £ 2320.00 

d) Details of other funding 

Funder What they may fund Dates of funding decisions 

 
Hastings Funds Management Ltd 
Grantscape – Crook Hill Community 
Fund 
 
Local Shops – joining fees 
 
Food / Drink Vendors – stall fees 
 
Local Business Sponsorship – TBC 

 
Marquees,  
Generator,  
Table & Chair Hire 
 
Insurance,  Street Decorations 

Entertainment 

 

 
Agreed 20/04/2016 

 

 
31st January 2016 

31st January 2016 

31st January 2016 

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required 
(enclose quotations, cost estimates or extracts from catalogues.  At least two quotations will be 
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money). 

Expenditure item Cost 

 
Marketing & Promotion to include;  
Graphic Design 
 
Leaflets, A5 both sides, 5000 
Posters, A4, 100, Posters, A3, 50 
 
Large Advertising Banners 76 cm x 244 cm @ £44.99 x 8 
Correx Signs for lampposts – 75 A4 size, single sided 
 
Website – domain, hosting & design, Online Advertisement 
 
Event Essentials to include; 
Cooking Demonstration Kitchen –supply, erect and supervision 
Generator & Fuel 
 
Marquees x 6 plus weights, delivery, set up, collection 
Tables & Chairs, 12 trestle, 60 chairs 
Bunting & Balloons 
 
Entertainment to include; 
Face painters x 2 
Rock Choir 
Band 1 
Band 2 
Band 3 
 

 
 

£100.00 
 

£59.50 
£80.00 

 
£240.00 
£200.00 

 
£300.00 

 
 

£1385.64 
£123.00 

 
£645.00 
£161.50 

£70.00 
 
 

£270.00 
£100.00 
£100.00 
£500.00 
£200.00 

 

TOTAL £4534.64 Page 17



 

Form PT02 

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Please supply the following documents when you submit your application.  IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY 
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION.  Please tick the 
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application. 

a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)  

b) Constitution/governing document  

c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please 
confirm your organisation has the following in place: 
 Child protection policies and procedures  Yes  N/A  
 Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and  
.volunteers 

 Yes  N/A  

d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from catalogues for proposed 
expenditure 

 

 

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION 

We, the undersigned agree to: 

 Abide by Pennines Township Funds Terms and Conditions. 

 No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given. 

 Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised 
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf. 

 Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from 
Pennines Township Office to make changes. 

 Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed 
Project Evaluation Form to the Pennines Township Office. 

 Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund. 

 Highlight the support of Pennines Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale 
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes. 

 Inform Pennines Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or 
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the 
grant on behalf of the organisation. 

Contact Person 
Organisation Chair or Treasurer 
(Different from Contact Person) 

Signature  Signature  

Full name Neela Jackson Full name Julie Pimlott 

Position Sub-Committee Member Position Treasurer  

Date  Date  

 

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have: 

 answered all the relevant questions and 

 enclosed all the information requested: 
- Annual accounts - Constitution/governing document 
- Bank statement(s) - Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from catalogues 
- BACS form 

 

We will return incomplete application forms. 
 

Please send your completed application form to: 
Pennines Township Office, c/o Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale  OL16 1XU 
Tel: 01706 922227 
Email: pennines.township@rochdale.gov.uk 

 Page 18



APPENDIX 4B

REF
PF!15/16

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for ApplIcants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Pennines Township Office.

Name of project Pennine Projects

*

a) Name of organisation
Pennine In Bloom

b) Type of organisation

D
Voluntary! Registered Sports! Limited Private Social Other
community charity leisure club company company enterprise type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides

To help and develop new and existing facilities in all areas of the Pennine Township, help to create and
restore the environment.
We are a self-funding for all initiatives and raising public awareness about issues in the township.
We help to provide public spaces where environmental and wildlife issues are balanced wherever possible.

We work closely with partners to encourage and appreciate, together the aims and contributions of all

groups involved along with awareness in the area that benefits horticultural activity and maintaining and

improving the natural landscape and the built environment.

d) Contact name Raymond Smith

e) Contact telephone

f) Contact address and
postcode

g) Email address

h) Web address N1A

Form PTO2Page 19



Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below

Project name Pennines Summer Projects Ref PF/17/14

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council? r;gj Yes ONo

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
or anisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

2014/15 Extended to 2016 July due to alterations to the original expenditure. Omit carpet bedding put to
summer bedding 2016. Funding sum £1176.88 See project evaluation PF/09/13 2016 July

- - ~-- -- ~~ -~--'--'-~-----~-------~------. ---- ---.,-~--~- --_.------ ----------- --.---------
SECTION 4 - ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION .~- -. . .
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?

Fruit trees and bushes benefits: To create an area in a very high population area along the canal. So people
can see how a fruit grows and they can help themselves to the fruit.

Picnic Tables: to put in an area for the people to enjoy the view and have their refreshments.

Benches: to put in place at the side of the canal for walkers to rest in the Katy Boat area.

Trees and Roses: to visually improve an area that has no colour but along the side of a main road and canal
access.

Summer bedding: to create colour in various locations throughout Pennines.

I,

Form PT02

Page 20



H:

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required
(enclose quotations, cost estimates or extracts from catalogues. At least two quotations wilt be
required for an items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for moqyj

Alan Lane fruit trees and fruit bushes
I D Fox Timber 2 eight seater picnic tables)

__

D Fox Timber 2 seat benches
S Burke fixing tables and benches
Alan Lane trees and roses
Bowlee Nursery Summer beddng plants
Repair to planter box in Milnrow

TOTAL

a> Cost of project

b) Amount of grant required

c) Amount from other sources

d) Details of other funding

Funcler What they may fund Dates of funding decisions

Expenditure item

£17275
£576 00
£360 00
£26400
£482
£1492 00
£15000

Form PTD2
Page 21

worrall sharron_2
Typewritten Text
40

worrall sharron_3
Typewritten Text
£3,497.15

worrall sharron_4
Typewritten Text
£3,497.15



~-----~~-~~--~-------- --- ~~--- - .. -~ -- . - ~
SECTION 6 - SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

-
Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPL Y
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.

a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s) ~
b) Constitution/governing document ~
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please

confirm your organisation has the following in place:
Child protection policies and procedures ~Yes ON/A
Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and ~Yes ON/A.volunteers t';~ «m~ ~-.

d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from catalogues for proposed
~expenditure

r- - - - --- -~-~---~-- ----~" ~ - -- -- - ------~- ~- ~-"',------- -- -----~ ••.••..• '" -~"=--- -,

SECTION 7 - DECl...ARATION

We, the undersigned agree to:

• Abide by Pennines Township Funds Terms and Conditions.
• No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
• Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised

by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
• Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from

Pennines Township Office to make changes.
• Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed

Project Evaluation Form to the Pennines Township Office.
• Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
• Highlight the support of Pennines Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale

Council's use of the organisation's name and photographs for promotional purposes.
• Inform Pennines Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or

can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.

Contact Person
Organisation Chair or Treasurer
(Different from Contact Person).....•.n C? --!/_-

K·~'~ ) SignatureSignature

Full name Raymond Smith Full name Carole Davies

Position Chairman PIB Position Secretary

Date 31.10.16Date 31st October 2016

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
• answered all the relevant questions and
• enclosed all the information requested:

_ Annual accounts - Constitution/governing document
_ Bank statement(s) - Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from catalogues
- BACS form

We will return incomplete application forms.

Form PT02

Page 22



List of our Achievement’s 2016 Britain in Bloom 

 

Wednesday 26th October 2016  

Milnrow Park in your neighbourhood – Thriving 

Ladybarn bowling Green - Outstanding 

Hare Hill Park - Outstanding 

Littleborough – Thriving 

Wardle Village Green and square - Thriving 

Watergrove Reservoir – Thriving 

 

Friday 28th October 2016 

Hollingworth Lake Littleborough Tourist attraction - Gold Award 

Conservation and Environmental award for the whole of Pennines Township plus  

Large Town (Township) - Silver Gilt 

Outstanding contribution to in bloom North West - Ray Smith 

Page 23



1

Sharron Worrall

From: Ian Trickett M
Sent: 04 November 2016 15:43
To: Sharron Worrall
Subject: Ray smith bid to Township

Hello Sharron, 
 
Ray Smith phoned me this morning to explain that he is submitting a bid to 
Township for picnic tables and benches, trees, fruit trees and fruit Shrub: 
Hollingworth Road various sites and that you need confirmation that EM Services 
are happy with this.  I can confirm that Ray Smith / Pennines in Bloom have 
presented these proposals to us and that we are happy with the proposals and the 
maintenance schedule to be undertaken by Pennines in Bloom group and their 
capacity to deliver that maintenance.  If for any unforeseen reason Pennines in 
Bloom group cease to be able to maintain said facilities at any future stage, EM 
Services will either take on maintenance or remove them if they become unsafe. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Ian 
 
Ian Trickett M 
Greenspace Development & Countryside Manager 
Environmental Management 
 

 
 

 01706 922073 

 07807 412496 
 ian.trickett@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Rochdale Borough Council 
Green Lane 
Heywood, Rochdale, OL10 2DY 
 

To access our services go to www.rochdale.gov.uk  
For news and social media updates go to www.rochdale.gov.uk/news  
 

Page 24



ROCHDALE
BOROUGH COUNCIL

NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE
Martin Taylor
Head of Environmental Management

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
Green Lane, Heywood,
Lances OL10 2DY

Ray Smith Enquiries: Contact Centre
Tel: 03003038884
Email: ian.trickett@rochdale.gov.uk

Ref:
Date: 26/9/16

Dear Mr Smith,

This letter is to confirm that Pennines in Bloom Group works in partnership with
Rochdale Borough Council. This includes that Pennines in Bloom Group utilizes
Rochdale Borough Council policies and procedures in terms of child / vulnerable
person protection.

Yours Sincerely,

lan Trickett

Parks Development and Countryside Manager
Environmental Management Service

"Working towards a cleaner, greener environment"Page 25



;_

5)

ec

fri

0

0

Page 26



fliC
10— —
c.J
Cn _

.tLd j
rt1

5__ .t,
kO 0
hpi (DO,
17’

r

in
z
0

0’
(Ii
1)

a
E

A’

C
p
21

C Page 27



From: anne ro’b$ba1n
Sent: 08 October 2016 M
To: Alan Lane
Subject: Rt pennine in bloom

hi

All hushes it hlakeurrant, redcwram, goosebeiiy. neat to be bare & up to 1mw till.

All trees ic apple.pears. plum.& themes in containers & standards.

Thank you.

Raymondo!!!

(hi Siruiddy. S Oaobct 201( (I ‘K \Liii I cat • intc

Good morning Ra>rnondo
I hope dii >ou ate in fine fettl:
Do > vu requite hare root trees and bushe’. and what ‘.1st wcmld > ou like the Inut trees’

Regards
Alan.

Sent from my iPad

On 7 Oct 2016, at 18:20. “anne rosbcaham” wrote:

blackeurrants (var.; wellington 5 lJ( ) .
. .9113_ --

redeurrank (iar.) red lane 51fl5 . q

gooseberry (red) var.zenia 52.45 a11 2> r bate root cut back to apprm. Ocm i2. 15 a 1. ic
%C5

tgtttlfl

Page 28



O/ 1Z2016

gooseberr\ (yellow) hinnor miaki 5 1 86 1

TREES all 12 std
apple (san) bramley s
apple (\ar.) greenslees Cs
peals (ai ) concord
pears (sar.) silliarns how chreties
plunv sarI victoria
eheiie (Val,) stella

ltn. please ss ould on pi

ur sincerely.
Ray Smith.

I

2 £lL5hi i9cg
2 iL5bi l9cg
2 lL5Dbi l9ca
2 l].Ohr lPcg
2 l5Obr E)5Ocg

2 l25Ohr 195Ucg

cv
9.

00
);c; c0

cUi

L4L ev

co cro

cc

about ban< 22Page 29



17th October 2016

To Alan

Dear Alan,

It is Ray from Pennines in Bloom pestering you again for some prices please as soon as possible for

two sites we would like to plant up on Hollingworth Road the canal side.

Site 1. Total size is 130 square meters

2 Prunus Amawognwa Large Standard Bare root say 12/14cm £36.00

150 Shrub Roses Ballerina 300/600 Bare root £2.20

?L
;q; 00

Site2

Betlila Jaqlie Multi stem Bare root Large standard X 1 2.5/3m rb—f%i0

Salix Gracilistyla Melano Iargej2dar 1 ?? do not know it

Robina Frisha Bare root large staj3drd?Ti?&32jb £42.00

Albizia iss eacontainer grown large £84.00

.auIownia Bare root large standard X 1 paulownia tomentosa

Regards Ray

Page 30



- ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Mark Widdup
‘L:”- Seice Director Operational Seices

Green Lane, Heywood
Lancs OL1 0 2DY

ROC [I DALE Date 10/10/2016
(i FOFD

COUNCIL

Hello Ray,

The total price for your bedding. baskets and compost for Pennines in Bloom
for summer 2017 is £1492 (which includes your 20% discount).

Thanks,

Leslie Masters.

Bowlee Garden Nursery,

Heywood Old Road,

Middleton, M24 4TH.

0161 653 3624

Page 31



2017 Plants

________

— - -

Milnrow
6x Planters i Central Feature Plant — Cordyline

4 Cineraria
30 Red Geranium
30 Blue trailing Lobelia

Milnrow Library 8 x trailing fuchsia
2 trays antirrhinum
2 trays large mixed begonia
2 trays petunia
3 trays geraniums
2 trays pink gypsophila
4 trays French marigolds
2 trays nemesia
5 trays trailing lobelia
1 tray verbena
2 trays alyssum

Wardle

_________

I

________ ____ ____

Hare&Hounds 75 Tuberous mixed Begonia
75 Begonia bedding
125 Antirrhinum mixed
350 Blue Lobelia

_________

2xPlantersUbra Verbena Bonariensre:dyin
72 Large begonia mixed x2

______

12 Trailing Nepeta

_____

2x Planters Playground Verbena Bonariensis (already in) 1
72 Large begonia mixed —x2

‘i2TrailingNepeta — J

k41cuujcs PL
Cij) C-Lj 3

7TicJ

4( 3

Cf N
;4cs 3 <‘

3
V’IM) ‘-) c

Page 32



APPENDIX 5 

“Littleborough Food & Drink Festival was 
highly successful in achieving the original aims 
to organise an event that would attract large 
numbers of people, local and from outside the 
area, putting Littleborough on the map” 
Neela Jackson 
Volunteer Sub-Committee Member 
Littleborough Food Festival Sub Committee 

Recipient: Littleborough Food Festival Sub Committee 

Project: Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 2016 

Fund: Town Centres Fund 

Awarded: £3,250 

Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 2016 on Saturday 11 June was staged to coincide with 
the Queen’s official 90th birthday with the theme of an old fashioned British street party with 
seating area and decorations including Union bunting flags and balloons.  The festival had a 
mix of outdoor and indoor venues.  Littleborough Square was transformed into a ‘food hub’ 
with food and drink stalls, entertainment with live music from Jaeger Maestros and Wardle 
Junior Blast and ‘street party’ seating areas.  Hare Hill Road staged cooking demonstrations, 
entertainment, face painting and food and drink stalls.  These two locations were 
complemented with a ‘food trail’ where visitors were provided with a map and invited to visit 
each participating shop, café, restaurant or business to sample food tasters provided by the 
business or a food trader situated within the business premises for the event. 

Unprecedented numbers of people visited Littleborough on festival day and promoted the 
area and shops as being a vibrant, lively independent place to shop and eat.  The grant 
awarded enabled the event to grow substantially as it funded the mobile demonstration 
kitchen, marquees, trestle tables/seating, decorations, entertainment and considerable 
marketing and publicity and this enhanced the quality of the event. 

Page 33



The ‘food trail’ led to an increase in foot fall in participating shops and businesses.  Local 
restaurants were invited to take part in the event with the option to run a stall or provide food 
tasters in a local shop with priority given to Littleborough based businesses.  The 
demonstration kitchen gave three local chefs from Littleborough Deli, The Green Door 
Restaurant and The White House, the opportunity to showcase their talents, provide 
informative demonstrations for the public to watch and promoted their individual businesses.  
Many people prior to the event had stated they thought local chefs should be given the 
opportunity to take the stage and feedback from the public about the demonstrations was 
very positive. 

After the success of this year’s festival, planning has commenced for the event next year 
with proposals to obtain additional road closures to create the space needed for stalls and 
entertainment areas.  The provision of a dedicated marquee for acoustic entertainment in 
Littleborough Square and individual ‘busker style’ street entertainment in Hare Hill Road in 
response to feedback from the public that music throughout the day would enhance the 
overall atmosphere.  Also create more attractions for children with activities such as 
traditional interactive ‘game’ style stalls such as coconut shy, hook a duck, etc, and 
introduce creative street entertainment such as jugglers, balloon modellers, mime artists, etc 
to appeal to all ages.  It is proposed to encourage shop owners to see a longer term benefit 
of participating and the organisers are currently discussing ways to increase the return of 
customers to Littleborough businesses.  Littleborough Food & Drink Festival organisers 
anticipate that the event will grow year on year providing they can maintain the support they 
have received. 

Page 34



Page 35



General feedback from business owners 

“What a great event, we had a lot of new faces checking out our wonderful shopping 
community.  It’s not about what we sell on the day; it’s about showing people what they are 
missing by not shopping regularly in Littleborough.  A great thanks to our organisers and 
marshals” 
Ray Sutcliffe, The Village Bakery 

“Huge well done to everyone concerned.  Lovely to see the village bustling with people” 

Kelly Turner, 25Ten Boutique 

Page 36



 
“We brought together local businesses and the community in a way that has not been 
achieved before.  …we saw an increase in numbers from last year’s trial event” 
Neela Jackson 

Volunteer, Littleborough Food Festival Sub Committee 

Page 37



 

“…the end location has proved to be very 
successful and the equipment is being 
used consistently” 
Raymond Smith 
Chairman 

Friends of Hollingworth Lake

Recipient: Friends of Hollingworth Lake 

Project: Relocation of Trim Trail 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £3,320 

Friends of Hollingworth Lake aim to develop new and existing facilities at Hollingworth Lake 
Country Park to improve, create and restore the environment of the area and increase usage 
of this valued local beauty spot. 

The Trim Trail equipment was installed around Hollingworth Lake in 2011 and featured 
various bars and posts to allow users to do straddle jumps, press ups, sit-ups, leap frogs, 
vault and balance beam to develop balance, strength and coordination.  The provision of this 
facility aimed to help local people create their own fitness regime shaped according to their 
own circumstances and levels.  The range of equipment allowed the user to pick and choose 
the appropriate equipment that suits them, as all apparatus have 'user-signs' indicating which 
exercise is best for any particular circumstance.  The equipment constructed primarily out of 
wood was in keeping with the environment and provided visitors to Hollingworth Lake the 
opportunity to enjoy keeping fit and healthy in safe and pleasant surroundings. 

The Friends of group applied for a grant to relocate the Trim Trail equipment to one area to 
make it more compact and accessible for use.  It was proposed to move the nine items of 
equipment made up of numerous timber pieces to the periphery of Hollingworth Road car 
park to provide an enhanced training facility for the general public.  Land drains crossing the 
proposed site to take away the excess water from the embankment drainage system 
restricted the space available and prevented the installation of the equipment in this location. 

After consultation with various parties, it was decided to install all the equipment in Hare Hill 
Park, Littleborough as a suitable location and maximise use.  Friends of Hare Hill Park 
welcomed the new addition to their facilities and the equipment located next to the skate park 
has proved popular with both adults and children.  The Council’s Environmental Management 
will be overseeing final works to the surface area at the location to make the site uniform.  
The Friends group are considering further improvements with the introduction of a safety 
surface under and around the equipment. 

Page 38



“We believe we have been very 
successful in promoting the civic twinning 
and the association friendship with 
Tourcoing.  …enjoying and participating 
in a wide range of activities served to 
foster social connections” 
Kathryn Rennie 
General Secretary 

Friends of Tourcoing Association 

Recipient: Friends of Tourcoing Association 
Project: Friends of Tourcoing Association celebration for 50 years of Civic Twinned 

Township Friendship 
Fund: Events Fund 
Awarded: £500 

Friends of Tourcoing Association aims to interest and inform the people of the Rochdale 
Borough about France and in particular the twinned town of Tourcoing.  The association 
promotes friendship, mutual respect and diversity.  The civic twinning relationship with 
Tourcoing has achieved 60 years and the friendship group a fantastic 50 years, bringing 
English and French together in community spirit and warm relationship.  Local people are 
offered the opportunity to engage in friendly social activities throughout the year and in 
particular, to access a bi annual trip to France to meet Les Amis de Rochdale, enjoying a 
civic reception from the Mayor of Tourcoing and sightseeing.  Many members have 
established solid friendships with their hosts over the years and return the hospitality to the 
French when they come to England to visit.  Friends of Tourcoing members actively take part 
in community events within the borough and contribute to the Mayor’s Charity as they have 
enjoyed civic patronage since their formation. 

A programme of activities in 2016 to celebrate 50 years of Tourcoing association friendship 
and 60 years of civic twinning promoted a positive image of the borough and its people.  
Friends of Tourcoing worked in partnership with community organisations and a school and 
patronised local businesses who all received credit for contributing to a successful visit. 

Page 39



 

Caldershaw Primary School (linked with Condorcet Primary School in Tourcoing) children 
hosted an afternoon of games and gave a choir performance, Heywood’s GPD Travel 
provided transport, students from Hopwood Hall College made and presented a celebratory 
cake, The Angel Project Community Café in the heart of Langley, Middleton welcomed the 
French guests and local potter Ken Isherwood produced commemorative bowls for the 
visitors.  The venues of the Coop Museum, Touchstones, Greater Manchester Fire Service 
Museum and St John The Baptist Church welcomed the visitors with special tours and 
entertainment was provided throughout the visit with performances from St Ann’s Morris 
Troupe, Milnrow, Wardle Senior Band and Skylight Circus Arts.  The Civic Dinner at 
Rochdale Town Hall hosted by the Mayor and Mayoress attended by the French guests of 
Deputy Mayor Didier Droart, President of Les Amis de Rochdale Mme Marie-Christine 
Lejenun, French Councillors Dorian and Sebastian Becue and Peter Maenout with other 
members of Les Amis de Rochdale was a special occasion with catering provided by Crofters 
and a performance by Lancashire Fusiliers Corp of Drums.  The local economy benefited 
from the visit with the French guests dining at local restaurants, hiring local transport and 
buying numerous souvenirs. 

Friends of Tourcoing Association considered the highlight of the programme was the 
spectacular celebration with 140 people at the 50th Celebration Dinner at Rochdale Town 
Hall.  The occasion was an opportunity to recognise special members of both Friends of 
Tourcoing and Les Amis de Rochdale.  Gifts were presented to Mrs Dorothy Forshaw in 
recognition of 50 years membership of Friends of Tourcoing and Christopher Dobby received 
a gift for having been a member of Les Amis since 1966 and at the age of 92 continues to 
take part in the exchanges.  Jean-Pierre Collado was presented with a gift in recognition of 
his contribution to Twinning and this was his 115th visit to Rochdale.  He began in 1971 as 
organiser of exchanges for schools and community groups and is remembered by many 
children now adults in the Rochdale Borough.  The programme of activities in 2016 to 
celebrate 50 years of Tourcoing friendship consolidated the association’s aims and 
aspirations. 

Page 40



Page 41



“The event was a great success, with 
hundreds of people attending the event in 
Hare Hill Park and watching the parades. 
The town centre was packed on the 
Sunday and everyone enjoyed the music 
and dancing, along with the children’s 
rides and stalls.” 
Stephen Lister 

Chairman, LEAF 

Recipient: Littleborough Events and Associations Forum (LEAF) 

Project: Littleborough Rushbearing Festival 2016 

Fund: Events Fund 

Awarded: £3,000 

The Rushbearing Festival has been held in Littleborough since 1991 and is accepted as a 
valued part of the local community calendar.  Originally a church-based event in which the 
floors of the churches were cleaned and refreshed with new reeds and rushes, the practice of 
Rushbearing has been revived in many towns and villages.  Littleborough is one of three 
towns in England that still maintain the decorated cart tradition (with Sowerby Bridge and 
Saddleworth).  Over the years the emphasis has changed and the festival now in its 25th 
anniversary year is more a celebration of traditional English dance and music. 

Littleborough Rushbearing Festival on 16-17 July 2016 provided the local community and 
visitors with the opportunity to celebrate the heritage of Littleborough with the traditional 
entertainment of folk dancing and music whilst also promoting the economy and tourism in 
the area.  This event was organised by the volunteers of Littleborough Events and 
Associations Forum (LEAF) working in partnership with community groups.  Littleborough 
Oakenhoof organised a repertoire of dance and music that provided quality performances in 
various styles from across England and Wales.  The cart dressing took place at Warland, the 
hamlet on Todmorden Road, where the owner of Warland Farm hosted an evening of song  

Page 42



and dance with a BBQ while volunteers collected the rushes and decorated the cart.  
Littleborough Cricket Club was used as a base for the event with camp facilities provided for 
visiting dancers.  A Ceilidh was held at the Cricket Club on the Friday evening and on the 
Saturday evening the Conservative Club hosted a folk sing-along.  This year the new vicar 
allowed a visit to Holy Trinity Church for a symbolic presentation of rushes to the church, thus 
renewing the ancient connection between the Rushbearing and the church. 

The attractions of the Hrafnsdale Herred Vikings combat demonstration and ‘living history’ 
display, climbing wall, assault course, story den for children, dog display team, craft sessions, 
flags/banners and musical performances were funded with the grant.  The Rushcart was 
paraded to Holy Trinity Church to lay the rushes before being led by Littleborough Band from 
Hollingworth Lake to Littleborough Square.  Crowds enjoyed performances from Bacup 
Britannia Coconut Dancers, Littleborough Oakenhoof Cloggers, Horwich Prize Medal Morris 
Men, Rossendale Clog Heritage and The Thieving Magpies from Marsden.  Hare Hill Park 
hosted commercial and charitable stalls for visitors to browse providing refreshments, 
information and entertainment with performances from Wardle Folk Group, Whitworth 
Mummers and That’s All Folks on the bandstand. 

The 25th Anniversary of Littleborough Rushbearing Festival attracted visitors, musicians and 
performers from across the UK with participants enjoying their involvement in maintaining our 
English traditions. 

Page 43



Page 44



Subject: Community Centre Monitoring Status: Publication

Report to:
Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee
Rochdale Township Action & Resources Sub 
Committee
Middleton Township Devolved Funding & 
Devolved Services Sub Committee
Pennines Township Delegated & Funding Sub 
Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods & Community

Date:
Tuesday 15 November 2016
Tuesday 15 November 2016
Thursday 17 November 2016
Thursday 17 November 2016

Report of: Director of Neighbourhoods Author: Emma Salloway

Author Email:  emma.salloway@rochdale.gov.uk Tel: 01706 924821

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To update Members on the community centre monitoring process for 2016 and inform 
Members of the information received for quarter one (April, May and June) and quarter 
two (July, August and September).

2. Recommendations

2.1 To continue with the current monitoring arrangements.

Reason for recommendation

2.2 Community centres are delivering in relation to the Public Health indicators. Public 
Health team are satisfied and impressed with the work/activities being delivered by 
community centres.

3. Background

3.1 A community centre monitoring process was first implemented in April 2012. This has 
been reviewed, revised and improved on an annual basis. As of April 2016 Public 
Health & Wellbeing contribute 65% of the funding to grant aided community centres 
with Neighbourhood and Community Services providing the remaining 35%. Public 
Health and Wellbeing were consulted on the community centre monitoring process and 
were satisfied this met their requirements pending the addition of Public Health 
indicators to the spreadsheet. There was also a request that a case study with a Public 
Health outcome be added to the process. The following are thus required on a 
quarterly basis from each community centre:

Page 45

Agenda Item 4



 A community monitoring spreadsheet highlighting activities, number of sessions 
and number of people attending. A distinction between whether the activities were 
community developed or private hires. A summary of the funding for each quarter 
is also provided, this will highlight if the centre is reliant on Council funding alone 
or if external funding is also used to deliver the activities.

 A case study to highlight a Public Health outcome.
 A good news story for the quarter.
 An up to date timetable of activities.

Monitoring visits also take place to verify and enhance the community centre 
monitoring process. These are both formal and informal. Monitoring information has 
been received from the following community centres:

 BACP
 Castlemere Community Centre
 Crimblecroft Community Centre
 Deeplish Community Centre
 Demesne Community Centre
 KYP
 Meadowfields Community Centre
 Rochdale Women’s Welfare
 Sparth Community Centre
 Spotland Community Centre
 Wardleworth Community Centre

The community centres form part of the Community Base Network (CBN). They are 
currently working to develop the Rochdale Borough Health & Wellbeing Alliance 
Community Base Network Strategy 2016 –18. The strategy outlines their collective 
vision and aspirations for the future and sets the direction that will influence the 
networks development and decision making over the next three years. It marks the 
latest phase in the success of the Community Base Network.

4. Alternatives considered

4.1 Community Centres could apply for funding in the form of an application form at the 
start of the new financial year. The applications would then be considered by a panel 
who could take a decision on the applications received.

5. Financial Implications

5.1 There are no financial implications from this report.

6. Legal Implications

6.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

7. Personnel Implications

7.1 There are no personnel implications from this report.

8. Corporate Priorities

8.1 The Vision and Blueprint for Rochdale Council retains Township Committees and will 
devolve a range of services to Township direction, managed through annual Township 
Plans which are reviewed on a quarterly basis.

Page 46



9. Risk Assessment Implications 

9.1 Any withdrawal or suspension of funding could lead to reduced services from a 
community centre.

10. Equalities Impacts

10.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no significant workforce equality issues arising from this report.

10.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no significant equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Not applicable

Page 47


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	Summary OF interests

	2 Minutes
	3 Pennines Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 1 - Pennines Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 2 - Pennines Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 3 - Pennines Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 4 - Pennines Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 4A - Pennines Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 4B - Pennines Township Funds 2016/17
	Appendix 5 - Pennines Township Funds 2016/17

	4 Community Centre Monitoring



